MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF WEST CENTRAL COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT #235 HELD IN THE ELEMENTARY CAFETERIA ON JANUARY 18, 2012.

The meeting was called to order by President Brent at 6:00 pm in the Elementary Cafeteria. The following board members answered roll call: Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye. President Brent declared a quorum present. Also present were Superintendent Grimm, S. Richard, D. Buss, J. Nichols, J. Bradburn, T. Hanson, M. Frakes, J. Farniok, R. Dwyer and approximately 15 community members.

CALL TO ORDER

President Brent then led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.

PLEDGE

ITEMS

GOOD NEWS

GOOD NEWS ITEMS

- 1. Under good news items the following items were highlighted:
 - Terri Copeland was named WRAM/WMOI's Teacher of the Month in December. She was presented a check for \$250 in which she purchased a television for the middle school;
 - The Elementary was awarded a grant from the Midwest Dairy Council in the amount of \$3700 in which to promote healthy eating. This grant was written on the behalf of West Central Elementary by Sandra Bertelson from the Ag Education Department of the Farm Bureau.
 - The 4th grade class was awarded a \$400 grant from the Illinois Pork Producers for classroom material related to agriculture;
 - The high school boys' and girls' basketball teams are having successful seasons;
 - West Central CUSD #235 received a 4.0, on a 4 point scale, financial district score from the State Board of Education based on the FY 10 audit.

APPROVE AGENDA

Motion by Anderson, seconded by Goff to approve the agenda with the addition of XII(D). Supt. Grimm's participation on the Governor's Classroom First Commission Study Group and XII(E). Self-Evaluation of the School Board. Roll call: B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye. Motion carried.

APPROVE AGENDA

RECOGNITION OF AUDIENCE REQUEST FOR PRESENTATION

Under recognition of audience request for participation, district resident Carl Swon addressed the board on district finances, the proposed SAFE building, and district test scores.

AUDIENCE REQUEST

CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by B. Arnold, seconded by John to approve the consent agenda (Minutes of the December 20, 2011 regular meeting; Minutes of the Closed Session from December 20, 2011). Roll call: J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye. Motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA

FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

Motion by Anderson seconded by B. Arnold to approve the payment of all bills as presented. Roll call: Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Anderson, seconded by Goff to approve the activity account summaries for December 2011 for WCE, WCMS and WCHS as presented. Roll call: Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Anderson, seconded by John to approve the December 2011 treasurer's report as presented. Roll call: John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye. Motion carried.

The board heard that as of the end of December actual expenditures and revenue to budget should be 50%. It was noted that actual expenditures were 47.72% of budget and actual revenue received was 49.01% of budget as of the end of December 2011. Supt. Grimm also reported that as of January 18, 2012, the State has vouchered but not yet paid District #235 \$498,182.

ACTION ITEMS

SAFE BLDG DISCUSSION

With the Board's approval, the board moved action item X(B) to the top of the action item list as there were several audience members in attendance for this action item. This agenda item included a presentation from District Architect Bill Phillips on the proposed SAFE building that the board has been discussing over the past couple of months. Mr. Phillips presented the board with three options for the construction of this SAFE building. The first option was for the SAFE building alone, the second option included the addition of 3 classrooms to the SAFE building as an alternate bid for this project. The third option included the SAFE building, the three additional classrooms identified in option 2 plus additional space that could be added to this project that would allow bringing the Pre K program from the Media campus to the north campus. This particular option would allow for the closure of the Media facility at some point in time in the future. Following Mr. Phillip's presentation, there was a question and answer session about the proposed SAFE building and the two additional options that were presented.

Following the discussion of the proposed SAFE building, Supt. Grimm presented the board with a lengthy report on possible funding options that should be considered to pay for the district's share of the SAFE building as well as paying for any additional space that the board may deem necessary and appropriate. The board was reminded that the reason for pursuing this grant and the additional space was to leverage FEMA dollars with local dollars to create additional space that may be needed in the future. If the FEMA grant is funded, it would pay 75% of the total costs of the SAFE building itself and the district would be required to pay 25%. The additional three classrooms that were discussed as well as the additional space for the Pre K program would be 100% paid for by the district. Supt. Grimm then presented some

information to the board on the process that would need to be followed if the board chose to use a financing approach that included working cash fund bonds.

As a result of a lengthy conversation on this topic, the board decided that they collectively needed some time to review the information that was presented to them at the meeting and that they would conduct a special meeting sometime in the next 2 weeks to take any action that they deem necessary relative to moving forward with the FEMA grant application process to pay for 75% of the SAFE room and/or possible additional alternative bids for additional space. If they were to decide to continue with the FEMA application and this application was approved then a funding option to pay the district's share of the construction costs would need to be decided. No date was set for this special meeting.

The board was reminded that the decision being made in only as to whether or not to continue with the application process and possible funding issues and this SAFE Building would only be built if the grant was funded.

Motion by J. Arnold, seconded by John to take a 5 minute recess at 7:45 pm. The vote was unanimous. Motion carried.

RECESS

The board returned at 7:51 pm with all board members present at roll call.

Motion by Anderson, seconded by B. Arnold to approve the request of Kayla Long to graduate from WCHS at the conclusion of her seventh semester provided all requirements of Board Policy 6:300 are met and that Kayla successfully completes all requirements for graduation from WCHS as presented. Roll call: Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye. Motion carried.

WCHS EARLY GRADUATION

Motion by Anderson, seconded by Robbins to approve the proposed agreement titled Memorandum of Understanding #11 concerning certified teacher tuition reimbursement as presented. Roll call: B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye. Motion carried.

WCATS AGREEMENT

REPORTS

The board heard reports from the building Principals Mr. Buss, Mr. Nichols, and Mr. Bradburn. In addition West Central Elementary Assistant Principal Mrs. Hanson made a few comments about her report that was included in the board packet. The board also briefly reviewed reports submitted by Mrs. Rima and Mr. Dwyer.

REPORTS

Mr. Grimm highlighted a few comments that were made in the district curriculum report.

Mrs. Frakes addressed the board on the district's three year technology plan that she is working to create. She informed the board that she hoped to have discussion on the district's technology at the District's Planning Retreat to be held on Saturday, January 21, 2012 and that the board would have a copy of the final draft that needs to be

approved at the February meeting so it may be submitted to the Illinois State Board of Education.

The board heard a report from Mrs. Farniok regarding special education.

The board heard a report from WCHS Assistant Principal, Mr. Dwyer on the second semester discipline statistics. Mr. Dwyer pointed out that in reviewing the numbers from first semester of the 2011-12 school year there has been a significant decline in the number of office referrals and other discipline issues from the same time frame last year.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

The board discussed a five year enrollment projection that Supt. Grimm provided the board. Supt. Grimm reviewed with the board the assumptions that were made to prepare this document. It was also pointed out that the district's enrollment continues to trend downward and the projections are that this trend will continue over the course of the next 3-4 years. It was also pointed out that even though our numbers are trending downward, history suggests that district's with a high percentage of low income students typically see declining enrollment during economic downturns and then when the economy begins to improve, people return to those schools and the enrollment numbers trend upward. It was suggested that this will happen again in the West Central School District at some point in time in the future although there are no guarantees.

SCHOOL FARM

5 YR

ENROLLMENT

PROJECTION

Board member Brad Arnold presented the board with a brief overview of the school farm and how it operates. Mr. Arnold shared with the board the types of farming operations that take place on the school farm and he reviewed the basic terms of the current tenant's agreement that is currently in place.

MOWING EQUIPMENT

Supt. Grimm reviewed with the board some information that the building and grounds committee had reviewed at their last meeting regarding the summer mowing and equipment needs. Basically, Supt. Grimm suggested to the board that at the February board meeting he would like to bring to them a recommendation to declare several pieces of equipment as surplus property so that they can be sold. In addition, Supt. Grimm informed the board that he would be seeking permission to purchase several pieces of equipment and seek bids for a large tractor that would be used for the mowing operation of the district. It was suggested that the district would be better off purchasing some new equipment, keep some of the old equipment and using existing staff to cover the mowing responsibilities during the late spring, summer and early fall. It was also suggested that it would be in the district's best interest financially to pursue this particular course of action rather than seeking bids to have someone contract with the district to complete this work.

CLASSROOM FIRST COMMISSION

The board had a brief discussion about Superintendent Grimm's participation in a work group for the Classroom First Commission that is being chaired by Lieutenant Governor Shelia Simon. The board reviewed the email that Supt. Grimm received inviting him to participate in the work group. It was decided after some discussion that Supt. Grimm

could attend the first meeting of the group and determine how much additional time the workgroup would require and then report back to the board these findings.

The board discussed briefly the idea of having a board self-evaluation. This would take place under the direction of a representative from the Illinois Association of School Boards. As a result of this conversation, Board President Brent was asked to make contact with the IASB representative to gather some additional information and then report back to the board.

BOARD SELF EVALUATION

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Under future agenda items, it was suggested that the board construct a survey to be used with the parents of those students who have left our district. A second agenda item is to review the district evaluation instrument and process for evaluating building principals.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

PERSONNEL ACTION

Motion by Anderson, seconded by B. Arnold to accept the letter of resignation from Nina Hurt as a district bus driver effective January 2, 2012 as presented. Roll call: John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye. Motion carried.

RESIG- N. HURT

Motion by J. Arnold, seconded by Robbins to accept the resignation of Mr. Albert Brasel as WCHS science teacher, WCHS assistant football coach, WCHS boys track coach and freshman class sponsor effective at the end of the 2011-12 school year as presented. Roll call: Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye. Motion carried.

RESIGN – BRASEL

Motion by Anderson, seconded by B. Arnold to approve the request for a six-week maternity leave from Carrie Todd as presented. Roll call: B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye. Motion carried

TODD MATERNITY LEAVE

Motion by J. Arnold, seconded by B. Arnold to employ Cathy Good as WCHS play director as presented. Roll call: B. Arnold, aye; J.Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye. Motion carried.

C. GOOD – PLAY

Motion by B. Arnold, seconded by Anderson to approve the resolution to release closed session minutes as per exhibit "A" and "B" as presented. Roll call: Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye. Motion carried.

CLOSED MINUTE REVIEW

CLOSED SESSION

Motion by Robbins, seconded by J. Arnold to adjourn to closed meeting to discuss personnel (the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body) and Superintendent's evaluation at 9:07 pm. Roll call: Anderson, aye; B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye. Motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION Motion by B. Arnold, seconded by J. Arnold to return to open session at 11:24 pm. Roll call: B. Arnold, aye; J. Arnold, aye; Brent, aye; Goff, aye; John, aye; Robbins, aye; Anderson, aye. Motion carried.

FUTURE MEETINGS

The board was reminded that the next meeting of the board would be on Saturday, January 21st for a special meeting to conduct a board planning retreat. This meeting will begin at 8:15 am and be held at the Pzazz conference room in Burlington. The board's next regular board meeting will be held on Wednesday, February 15, 2012. This meeting will be held in the elementary cafeteria and will begin at 6 pm.

FUTURE MEETINGS

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by B. Arnold, seconded by J. Arnold to adjourn at 11:26 pm. The vote was unanimous. Motion carried.

ADJOURN

THESE	MINUTES	ARE	APPROVED	AS	WRITTEN	THIS	15 TH	DAY	OF
FEBRU	ARY 2012.								

Lonnie Brent, Board President	Paul Anderson, Board Secretary